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Donatd 1. Allman, CPA, 1'C

4749 Williams Drive , Ste. 322
Grorgetown, Texas 78633

Fmail: dalimand@donallmancps.com

CERTIFIED PUBLAIC ACCOUNTANT

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of City Council
City of Rockdale, Texas

Report on the Financlal Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remalning fund
information of the City of Rockdale, Texas as of and for the year ended September 30, 2019, and the related notes
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Cily of Rockdale, Texas' basic financial stalements as
listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
staterments that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibllity is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with audiling standards generally accepted in the Unlted States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audil involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entily's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evalualing the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Opinions

in our opinion, the financial stalements referred to above present faidy, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type aclivities, the aggregate discretely presented
component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Cily of Rockdale, Texas, as
of September 30, 2019, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America,




Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion
and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 5-13 and 57-63 be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods
of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance,

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the City of Rockdale, Texas' basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual
nonmajor fund financial statements, and statistical section, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and
are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and is
also not a required part of the basic financial statements,

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used
to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 2, 2020, on our
consideration of the City of Rockdale, Texas' internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the City of Rockdale, Texas' internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Donald L. Allman, CPA, PC
A

Georgetown, TX
March 2, 2020



Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of the City of' Rockdale Texas (the “City™), we olfer readers of the City's financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the year ended Seplember 30, 2019,

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

¢ The net position of the City increased by $662,900 in the 2019 fiscal year for government-wide financial
statements, As part of this $662,900 total increase in net position, the net position of general fund activities
decreased by $273.918 and the proprietary fund increased by $388,982.

+ The City's total net position of governmental fund activities decreased by $ (2,493.794) in the 2019 fiscal
year resulting in an ending net position of $1,449,213.

e Property Tax and Sales Tax revenues increased substantially in fiscal year 2019, indicating economic
growth Tor the City.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management's discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction (o the City’s basic financial
statements, The city’s basic financial statements include three components: 1) government-wide financial
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements,

GOVERNMENT-WIBE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The govermment-wide financial siatements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Cily’s
linances, in 4 manner similar to o private-sector business,

The statement of net pusition information on all of the City's assets and liabilities, with the difference between the
two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decrcases in nel position may serve as a useful indicator of
whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating,

The stctement of activities presents mformation showing how the City's net position changed during the most
recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change
oceurs, regardless of the timing of related cash Nows. Thus, revenues and expenses and reported in this stalement
for some items that will only resut in cash fows in future fiseal periods (e.g., depreciation and earned but unused
vacation leave).

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Traditional users of government financial statements will find the fund financial statement presentation more
familiar. The focus is now on the City’s most significant funds, The fund financial statements provide more
inlormation about the City's most significant funds -~ not the City as a whole,

Governmenta! Funds — Governmental funds are used to account Tor essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information
may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

5




Because the focus of povernmental funds is narrower than the government-wide lnancial statements, it is useful 1o
compare the information presented for the governmental Funds with similar information presented for governmental
activities in the government-wide financial stalements, By doing so, readers may beller understand the long-term
impact ol the government's near-term finaneing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheef and the
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconcilialion to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities,

The City maintains several individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental
fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund stalement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances
for the General Fund and the 2016 Combined Tax/Rev CO Fund, which are considered to be major funds. Data
from the other governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for
each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining stalements elsewhere in this
report.

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund. A budgetary comparison statement has been
provided for the General ['und to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

The governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 20-23 of this report.
Proprictary Funds — The City maintains one type of proprietary fund. An enterprise fund is used to report the

same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses an
enterprise fund (o account for its Lhility (Water, Sewer, and Sanitation) activities,

A proprietary fund provides the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in
more detail, The proprietary Tund financial statements provide separate information for the Wility Fund, which is
considered to be a major fund of the City.

The proprictary fund financial statements can be found on pages 24-27 of this report,

Fiduciary Fund - The fiduciary fund is used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside of the
City. The fiduciary fund is not reflected in the government-wide financial stadements because the resources of this
{und are not available to support the City’s own programs.

The fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 28-29 of this report,

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a {ull understanding of the data provided in the
governmeni-wide and fund {inancial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 30-50
of'this report.

OTHER INFORMATION

tn addition to the basic Ninancial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required
supplementary information which includes a budgetary comparison schedule for the City’s General Fund and
pension benelits information. Required supplementary information can be found on pages 58-64 of this report.

The combining fund financial statements referred 1o earlier in connection with non-major governmental [unds are
presented immediately following the required supplementary information. Combining fund financial statements can

be (ound on pages 66-69 of this report.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Net position may serve over time as a uselul indicalor of a government’s Tinancial position. Tn the case of the City
assels exceeded liabilities by $12,628,230 at the close of the liscal year,

The City’s net position (68.2%) reflects its nel investment in capital assets (e.g. land, building, machinery,
infrastrueture, and equipment). The City uses these capital assets to provide services to the citizens: consequently,
these assets are not available for future spending,

An additional portion of the City’s net position (22.2%) represents resources that are subject 1o external restrictions
on how they may be used.,

The remaining baldance of unrestricted net position {9.06%) may be used 10 meel the government's ongoing
obligations to citizens and creditors. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City reporled a positive net position
balance in the governmental activities and a positive net position balance in the business-lype activities,

STATEMENT OF NET POSITHON
As of September 39, 2019

Governmental Rusiness-Type
Activities Activities Total
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

Curreni and other assets & 1,810,818 % 3,906,314 % 3,100314 % §,349,431 £ 3209029 8 9445745
Capital assets, net 6,807,796 1,692,558 15,737,866 14,695,132 22,545,602 18,387,690
Total Assets 8,627,611 7.0688,872 19,137,080 20,144,563 27,764,691 27,833,435
Deferred Outflows

of Resources 279,565 5,096 96,030 1,898 375,595 7,594
Long-term liabilities 2,707,579 2,550,114 10,145,871 10,861,304 12,853,450 13411418
Other Habilities 432,726 417,138 1,321,887 1,338,036 1,754,613 1,755,174
‘Fotal Liabilities 3,140,305 2,967,252 11,467,758 12,199 340 14,608,063 15,166,592
Beferred Inflows

of Resources 672,828 527,723 231,165 181,384 903,903 709,107
Net investment in

capital assels 31,870,253 918,318 4,744,607 3,016,724 8,614,860 3,935,042
Restricted 012,337 3,212,344 1,887,711 1,189,727 2,800,048 4,332,071
Unrestricted 31453 68,931 901,869 3,629,286 1,213,322 3,698,217

Total Net Position TE004.043 T8 A TO0 0T TN T ATANETT TR T es Y $ 126282300 7% 11,965,330

Current and other assets of governmental activities decreased by $(2,176.499) or 54.4%.
Current and other assets of business-type activities decreased by $(2,050,217) or 37.6%.
Long-term liabilities for governmentad activities increased from the prior year by $157,465 or 6.2%.

Long-term liabilities for business-type activities decreased from the prior year by $(715,433) or 6.6%.



Net position of the Cily, which relates to governmental and business-type activities, increased by $662,900. Key
elements ol the increase are as follows:

Revenues

Program revenues:
Charges for services

Gieneral revenues:
Property taxes
Sales taxes
Franchise taxes
Hotel / motel taxes

Penalties and interest

[nvestment carnings

Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenses

General government
Public salety

Highways and streets
Community services
Health Services

Culbture and recreation
Interest and fiscal charges
Utitiey

Total Expenses

Increase {Decrease) in
Net Position Before
Transfers

Transfers in (out)
Change in Net Position
Prior Period OPEB AJE
Net Pesition, Beginning

Net Position, Ending

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Far the Fiseal Year Ended Seplember 30, 2019

Governmental

Business-Type

Activilies Activities Totals
2019 2018 2009 2018 2019 2018
434,196 882,517 2812408 2,969,002 3,706,004 3,851,539
$ 2068062 $ 1916479 § - % - %5 2068062 5§ 1916479
§12.383 703,513 - . 812,383 703,513
289,079 292,158 - - 289,079 292,158
152,079 129,700 - - 152,679 129,700
34,405 41,690 - - 34,405 41,690
90,815 33,601 91,594 142,924 182,409 176,525
239 807 118,740 444,674 406,925 684,481 525.665
4,640 826 4,118,418 1,348,676 3,518,851 7.080 500 7.637.769
977,622 1,371,418 49,063 35,347 1,026,085 },4006,765
1,573,390 1,377.389 - “ 1,573,390 1,377,389
649,570 653,262 - - 649,370 633,262
121,259 117,207 - - 121,259 117,207
961,623 720,698 . . 961,623 720,698
84,044 85,710 309,727 289,104 393,771 374,814
- - 2,600,904 2,900,800 2,600,904 2,900,800
4,366,908 4,335,684 2,959,684 3,225,251 7,326,602 7.550,935
273,918 (207,266) 388,982 293,600 662,900 86,334
626,532 - (620,532) - - -
§94,450 (207,266} (231,550} 293,600 662,900 86,334
“ {86,343) - {28,782) - (H15,127)
4,199,593 4,493,204 7,765,737 7.500,919 11,965,330 11,994,123
S 5004043 0% 4199593 0§ 7534087 % LT6ATIT 0% 12,628,230 0% 11,965,330




Graphic presentations of selected date from the changes in net position table follow to assist in the analysis of the
City's activities.
Penalties and

interest GOVERNMENTAL REVENUES
1% Investment earnings Miscellaneous Charges for services
I‘D‘ 2
Hotel / motel taxes 2% 5% 219%
3%

Franchise taxes

6% General revenues:

0%

Sales taxes
17%

Property taxes
aA5%

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019, revenue from governmental activities totaled $4,640,826, the largest
portion of which related to property taxes (44.5%).

GOVERNMENTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
Interest and fiscal
charpes
Culture and recreation 2%
22% -

General government
22%

Health Services
D%
Community

services
3%

Highways and streels

15% Public safety

36%

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019, expenses from governmental activities totaled $ 4,366,908 , the
largest portion of which related to public safety (36.0%).



FINANCIAL ANALYSES OF THE CITY'S FUNDS

As previously noted, the City uses fund accounting o ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal reguirements.

Governmental Funds ~ The focus of the City's governmental Tunds is to provide information on near-lerm
inflows, owtllows, and balances of spendable resources, Such information is useful in assessing the City’s financing
requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a usefud measure of o goveriment’s fet resources
available for spending at the end of the fiscal year,

As of September 30, 2019, the City's governmental funds reported a combined ending fund balance of' $ 1,449,213
, which is a decrease of $(2.043,869) from last year's total of § 3,493,082 . Approximately 43% of the total fund
balance constitutes unassigned fund balance, which is available for spending at the government's discretion,
Approximately 37% of fund balance is restricted to indicate that it is not available for new spanding because it las
already been determined that these monies will be used for special projects, capital projects and debt service.
Lasdy, the remaining 0.2% of fund balance is Nonspendable to indicate that these amounts are not available for
appropriation,

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end ol the current fiscal year, unassigned lund
balance for the General Fund was $617,419. As a measure of the General Fund's liquidity, it may be uselul to
contpare unassigned fund balance (o fotal expenditures, Unassigned fund balance represents approximately 14% of
total General Fund expenditures.

During the current fiscat year, the fund balance of the City™s General Fund decreased by$(112,947).

‘The 2016 Comb. Tux/Rev. CO fund reported an ending fund balance of $ $246,211, due to the issuance of the
Combination Tax and Revenue certilicates ol obligation, Series 2013, in the amount of $3,000,000.

Proprietary Fund — The City’s proprietary fund provides the same type of information found in the government-
wide financial stalements, but in more detail. Unrestricted net posHion in the Utility Fund at the end of the year was
$901,869,

During the 2019 fiscal year, the Utility Fund has an increase in net position of $(231,550). Other factors

concerning the {inances of these three funds bave already been addressed in the discussion of the City’s business-
type activities.
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BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
Operating Expenses & Revenues

3,500,000,00

3,000,000.00
2,500,000,00
2,000,000.00
1,500,000.00
1,000,000.00

500,000.00

Total Operating Revenues Total Operating Expenses

SENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

[Each year the City spends a significant amount of time developing the annual budget. Staff analyzes both prior year
actual results and the needs for the upcoming year in order to determine the final budget. Throughout the year, the
budget is also amended to reflect changes in expectations for revenues and expenditures based on actual results
during the year. The original and the final budget figures reflect the differences between the two budgets.

FFor the 2019 fiscal year, actual revenues were $ 571,696 more than budgeted. Actual expenditures were $110,240
more than budgeted. The budget projected a decrease in fund balance of $(256,000) while the final actual result
was an increase of $205,456 for the year ended September 30, 2019,



CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets -~ The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities of
September 30, 2019, amounts to 22,545,662, This investment in capital assets, includes tand, construction in
progress, butldings and improvements, equipment and infrastructure, The City's investment in capital assets for the
current year increased by approximately 22.6%, This increase can be attributed 10 adding the police station and
water/wastewater system improvements,

SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL ASSETS
{Net of Accumlated Depreciation)
30-Sep-19

Goveramental Business-Type
Activities Activities Totals
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

Non-Deprecinble Assets

fand 5 4o % dtornr 50,506 % 50506 % 460017 5 460,617

Construction i progress - - - -
Depreciable Capital Assets

Buildings and improvemems 4,258,338 947856 157,257 165,455 4,415,505 L1331

Eguipment 594,264 625,802 £.085,554 1,099,296 1,679,823 1725098

Infrastructure 1,545,078 1.708.789 14,444,549 [3379.875 15,989,627 15,088,004

Totals 6,807,796 3,092,538 13,737,866 14,693,112 22,545,662 18,387,690

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in Note 9 in the notes Lo financial statements.

LONG-TERM BEBT

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total long-term debt outstanding o $13,930,802. The City’s
1otal long-term debt decreased by $(521,846) during the current fiscal year. This decrease during the 2019 fiscal
year is mainly attributable te principal payments.

SCHEDULE OF LONG-TERM DEBT
30-5ep-19

Governimental Business-Type
Activitles Activities Fotals
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Cienerad ebligation debt $OLOT3.000 0 32065000 % - % - 5 LOTS000 % 2165000
Capital leases 37,190 91,316 7388 14,492 64,578 105,508
Reverie debr und notes - - 10,670,000 11,480,000 10.6T70.000 11,480,000
Net pension Hability 038,837 347 905 233 6% 140,577 892,330 528,482
Net OPEB Liability 103,335 102,463 34,445 34154 137,780 136,617
Compensited absences 143,141 27,556 47,727 9,185 190,908 614
Totaks 5 LONIAAY TR LA IO TR 00T TETTATRAUR. TS TR0 807 TR WASIAIN

Additional information on the City's long-term debt can be found in Notes 10 and Note H in the notes to {inancial
stalements,



GENERAL FUND HIGHLIGHTS

» und balance in the General Fund decreased (0 $61 7,419 1t is intended that, i needed, the use of available
fund balance will avoid the need (o raise taxes in the near future.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT FISCAL YEAR’S BUDGET AND RATES

The economic conditions facing the City of Rockdale improved significantly in the 2019 fiscal year,

No changes were made in staff that would affect the City’s financial accounting or reporting for the fiscal year
ending September 30, 2019, The City Councit continues 1o have a conservative approach to finances and to keep

tax rates competitive with surrounding communities.

For the 2019 fiscal year, the tax rate stayed at $.9118 per $100 valuation. The water fees and wastewater fees were
not increased for the 2019 {iscal year.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed o provide a general overview of the City of Rockdale, Texas® finances for all
those with an interest in the City’s linances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or
requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the City Treasurer, City of Rockdale, Texas,
P.O. Box 586, Texas 76567.
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CITY OF ROCKDALE, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

September 30, 2019

Exhibit At

Component
Primary Government Linit
Municipal
Governmental  Business-Type Development
Aclivities Activities Totals District
Assels
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,543,894 % 20603524 0§ 4147418 % 352,837
Receivables, nel 243,120 785,551 1,028,671 31,300
Prepaid expenses 26,347 10,139 36,486 -
lventory 6,454 - 6,454 -
Capital assets, not being depreciated 410,111 50,506 460,617 608,845
Capital assels, net of accumudated depreciation 6,397,685 }5,687,360 22,085,045 170,767
Total Assets 8,627,601 19,137,080 27,764,691 1,163,749
Deferred Qutflows of Resourees
Deferred Quiflows 279,565 96,030 375,595
TFotal Deferrved Qutfows of Resources 279,565 96,030 375,595
Linbilities
Accounts payable and other eurrent liabilitics 202,762 229,597 432,359 G852
Deposits - 244,902 244902
Acerued inferest payable - - -
Long-tern liabilities due withis one year 229,904 847,388 1077352 70975
Long-erm liabilities due in more than one year 2,707,579 10,145,871 12,853,450 583,350
Total Liabifities 3,140,305 F1L,467.758 14,608,003 661,177
Deferred Inflows of Resouvees
Deferred inflows 672,828 231,165 903,993
Fotal Deferved Inflows of Resources 672,828 231,165 903,993
Net Position
Net investment in capital nssels 3,870,253 4,744,607 8,614,860 502,572
Restricted for:
Debt service 305,193 1,119,727 1,424,920 -
Capital projects 246,211 767,984 1,014,195 -
Leonomic development - - - -
Special Revenue Funds 360,933 - 360,933 -
Unrestricted 311,453 901,869 1,213,322 -
Fotal Net Position R LR JRXT: N SR X ek R L

See Notes to Financial Statements
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CITY OF ROCKDALE, TEXAS
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Seplember 30, 2019

Exhibit A-3
2016 Comb Other Totals
General Tax/Bev CO Governmental  Governmental
Fund Funil Funds Frunds
Assels
Cash and cash equivalents T8TZ0R & 246.211 $ 510475 8 L3438
Receivables, net:
Property laxes 141,493 - - 141,493
Sales fuxes 71,906 - - 71,906
lines - - . -
Other 29721 - - 29721
Due from ather funds {91,720} . 1726 “
Inventory 6,454 - - 6,454
Total Assets 243,000 2a0.2¢1 [l edtd| 1,793,400
Liabilities, Deferved Inflows of
Resources and Fund Balapces
Liabilities
Accounts payable 94,566 19,923 460 114,949
Wages and salarics puyable 8§7.813 - - 87.813
Due o other funds {2,689) - 2,689 -
Total Liabilities 179,690 19,923 3,149 12,762
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenues, property taves 141,493 - - 141,493
Lipavailable revenoes, fines . . - -
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 141,493 - - 141,493
Fund Balnnces
Nonspendoble 6,454 - - 6,434
Restricted - 220,288 599,052 825,340
Unassigned 017419 - - 617419
Total Fund Balances 023,873 220,288 399,052 {449,213
Tofai Liabilities, Deferved Inflows of
Resources and Fund Balances 45,036 S 246,211 % H2,201 % L7V3406%

Amaounts reported for governmentn! actividies in the statement of net position are difforent because:

Copitad assets are used in governmental aetivities sre not current financial resources and thercfore not
reported in the governmental lunds,
Property tases receivable are not available 10 pay Tor curremt period expenditures and therefore are deferred
in the governmentad fuds.
Some Babilities, including bomds payable, interest payable, notes payable, premiums on bonds/other
refunding charges, net pension liability and accrued compensated absences are not reported us labilities in
the governmental funds,
Deferred outflows and inflows of resources periaining 1o sclueriad pension differences between expecied
and actual economic experience, projected and actual investment carnings and pension contributions made
subsequent to the measurement date are a0t financial resources, and therefore, are not reported in the
ks,
Courl {ines receivable are unavailoble o pay for carrent period expenditures and are therelore delerred in
the povernmenlal lunds,

Net Position of Governmental Activities

See Notes to Financial Statements

()

6,807,796

F1,493

(2.937.543)

{366510)

—— s

$ 5,094,043
TEE————




CITY OF ROCKDALE, TENAS
Exhibit A-4
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENBITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
September M, 2019

2016 Comb Other Total
Tax/Rev CO Governmental Governmental
General Fund Funds Fundls
Revenues
Taxes:
Property 5 LATOR58 % - % 472277 % 2,043,135
Sales 812,383 - . 812,383
Hotelmotel . - 152,079 152,079
Franchise 289,079 - - 289,079
Penalites and interest 34,405 - . 34,405
licenges and permils 34,169 - - 34,169
Fines and forfeitures 168,294 - . 168,294
Charges for services 513,957 - 231,776 754,733
Contributions and donations 7,556 2,275 25,402 35,233
lavestment eamings 43,682 31,871 15,262 90,815
Other 204,554 - - 204,554
Foial Revenaes 3.678.937 34,146 902,796 4,615,879
Expenditures
Current:
Cieneral/government 554,985 - 359,221 914,206
Public safety 1,337,101} 66217 4,076 F 407,394
Highways and streets 307.628 - - 507,628
Community services 121,259 . - 121,259
Health serviees - - - -
Cuiture and recreation 216,577 . - 916,577
Cupital Outlay - 3,406,481 S207,924 3,614,405
Deist Service:
Principal retieement 35931 - 188,195 214,126
interest and fiseal charges - - 123,239 123,259
Debt issuance costs - - - -
Total Expenditures 3,473,481 3,472,698 882,675 7.828.854
{Deficiency) of Revenues
{Under) Expenditures 205,456 {3.438,352) 20,121 (3,212,975)
Other Financing Sources
Capita! leases - - - -
Debt fssuance costs - - . -
Transfers in (169.418) 1,020,853 {131,854) 719,181
Total Other Financing
Sources {169,818) 1,020,853 {131,854) 719,181
Net Change in Fund Balances 35638 (2,417,699 (11,733 (2,493,794)
Fund Balances - Beginning 588,233 2,643,987 710,785 3,943,007
Fund Balances - Ending & 023,873 % 226,288 S 399,050 3 1,449213
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CITY OF ROCKDALE, TEXAS
Exhibit A-5

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Amounts reporled Tor governmental activitics in the statement of activities are
differemt because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 5 (2,493,790
Governmental funds report capital ottays as expenditures, However, in the statement of’

statement of activities the cost of those assets is atlocated over their estimated useful lives
and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlay

3,532,944 is more than depreciation (84 17,706} in the curvent period, 3,115,238
Pension Expense & OPEB Expense is not included in Governmental Funds (143,039}
intertund teansfers are not included in government wide finaneial statements. 216,820

Revenues in the statement ol activities that do not provide current linancial resources
are not reported as revenue in the funds, This represents the net change in praperty taxes
receivable an the accerual basis of accounting. {24,927)

The issuance in long-term debt (e.g., bonds, feases, certilicates of obligation} provides

current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal
of long-term debt consumes the curvent finncial resources ol governmental funds.
Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position. Also, governmental funds
repor! the effect of premiums, discounts and similar ilems when debt is first issued,
whereas these amounts are delerred and amortized in the statement of activities, This
amount represents the net effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term delt
and related items, and consists of and principal repayment on capital leases, notes

payable und bonds $188,195. 224,126
Change in Net Position of Governmental Activithes S 894,430

See Notes to Finmeial Statements



Assets
Current Assels:
Cash & cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Due from other tunds
‘Total Current Assets
N()II(‘III'!‘QI![ assels
Capital assets:
Construction in progress
Land
Buildings and improvements
Equipment
Infrastruclure

CITY OF ROCKDALE, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND
September 30, 2019

Less aecumidated depreciation

Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deterred outflows

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

Current Linbilities
Accounts payable
Wages and salaries payable
Customer deposits
Unearned revenue
Accrued interest payable
Capital leases payable
Bonds payable
Total Current Linbilities
Noncurrent Liabilitics
Capital leases payable
Compensated absences
Net pension liability
Net OPED Liability
Bonds payable

Fotal Noneurrent Liabilities

Total Linbifitics
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferved inllows

Total Peferred Inflows of Resources

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Linresiricted

Total Net Position

See Notes to Financial Stitements

23

Business-Type
Activities

Utility
Fond

b 2,603,524
785,551
10,139

3390214

50,506
361,053
1,502,467
23,604,723
(0,780,883)

15,737,866

19,137,080

96,030

96,030

229,507

244,902

6,36%
840,000

1,321,008

819
47,727
233,699
34,445
9,830,000

10,146,690

11,467,758

231,165

231,165

4,744,607
1.887.711
901,869

$ 7,534,187

Exhibil A-6




CITY OF ROCKDALE, TEXAS
Exhibit A-7
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND
For the Year ended Septemsher 30, 2019

Business-Type

Activities
Litility
Fund
Operating Revenues
Charges for services:
Water 1,235,184
Sewage 1112067
Sanilation _ 349,444
NW water lower 129,043
Other 431,344
Total Operating Revenues 3,257,082
Personnel services - salaries and wages 598.685
Personnel services - employee benefits 162,067
Purchased profossional and technical services 124,464
Purchascd property services 436,946
Other operating expenses 593.636
Supplics 48,577
Depreciation 683,572
Total Operating Expenses 2,649.967
Operating income 607,118
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment earmnings 1,594
interest expense (309,727
Other non-operating expenscs -
Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) (218,133)
Income Before Fransfers 188,982
Transters in -
Transfers {out) {620,512)
Change in Net Position (231,550)
MNet Position, Beginning 7,765,737
Net Position, Ending b3 7,534,187

See Nates o Financial Statements



CrEY OF ROCKDALE, TEXAS
Exhibit A-8 {Page 1 of 2)
STATEMENT OF CASE FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND

For the Year ended September 30, 2019

Business-type

Activities
Utility
Fund
Cash Flows From Opcerating Activitics
Reeeipts from customers and users 53,205,007
Disbursed for goods and services to suppliers (1.412,143)
Dishursed for personnet services (598,683)
Other revenues -
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 1,194,269
LCash Flows From Nopeapital
Finanging Activities
Transfers from other funds -
Transfers (10) other funds {620,532)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by noncapital
Financing Activities (620,532)
Cash Flows From Capital and Related
Financing Activities
Principal payments on bonds, notes and capital Jeases {846,569)
Proceeds {rom capital debt 130.399
interest and fiscal charges (309,727)
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (1.728.,3006)
Net Cash {Used) by Capital and Related
Financing Activities {2,754,203)
Cash Flows Frow Investing Activities
Interest Received 91,594
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 91,594
Net Inerease in Cash and Cash Equivalents (2,088,872)
Cash and Cash Equivatents, Beginning 4,692,390
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Ending 3 2,003,524

See Notes 0 Financial Statements,
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CITY OF ROCKDALE, TEXAS
Exhibit A-8 (Page 2 of 2)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND

For the Year Ended September 38, 2019

Business-Type
Activities
Utility
Fund

Reconcilistion of Operating Income (Loss) (o
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Operating income (loss) & 607,115
Adjustments 1o reconcile operating income (loss)

to net cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation 685,572
{Increase) decrense in aceounts receivable (51.985%)
tncrease in Customer Deposits 5,282
Inerease (decrease) in accounts payable {51,715)
Totat adjustments 587154
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities h 1,194,269

See Notes to Financial Statements



Assets
Cash and cash eguivalents
Total Assels

Liabilities

Net pension obligation
Totat Liabilities

See Notes to Financial Statemenis

CITY OF ROCKDALE, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUND

September 30, 2019

Firemen's Pension
Trust Fund

$ 214,816
3 214,816
3 214,810
$ 214,816

Exhibit A-9




CITY OF ROCKDALE, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY

Additions
Investment earnings
Other revenne
Total Additions
Deductions
Pension payouls
Total Deductions
Change in Net Position

Total Net Position - Bepinning

Total Net Position - Ending

See Notes 1o Financial Staterents,

NET POSITION

September 30, 2019

Firemen's Pension
Trust Fund

5 5,529
11,500

17.029

6,325

0,525

10,504

204.312

;] 214,816

Exhibit A-10



CITY OF ROCKDALE, TEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Exhibit A-11

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Rockdale (the “City”} is a municipal corporation operating under the applicable laws and regulations of
the State of Texas as a home-rule municipal corporation. It has a Council-Manager form of government with the
mayor and six council members elected by registered voters of the City. The City prepares its basic financial
statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles promulgated by the Governmental Accounting,
Standards Board and other authoritative sources identified in Statement on Auditing Standards No, 69 of the
American Institute of Cerlificd public Accountants; and it complies with the requirements of the appropriate version
of Texas' uniform accounting requirements and the requirements of contracts and grants of” agencies from which il
receives funds,

The Cily has implemented GASH Statement No. 62 (GASB 62) Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting
Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements. which incorporates certain
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) and American fnstitute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA)
pronouncements issued prior to December 1, 1989, into the GASB Codification as long as they do not conflict or
contradict GASB literature,

A. Reporting Entity

The Mayor and Council are elected by the public and they have the authority to make decisions, appoint
administrators  and  managers, and significantly influence operations. They also have the primary
accountability for fiscal matters, Therefore, the City is a financial reporting ontity as defined by the
Govertnmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB™) in ils Statensent No. 14, “the Financial Reporting
Entity,” as amended by GASB Statements No. 39 and No, 61,

The City is an independent political subdivision of the State of Texas governed by an elected council and a
mayor and is considered a primary government, As required by U.8. generally accepted accounting principles,
these financial statements have been prepared based on considerstions regarding the potential for inclusion of
component units, which are other entities or organizations that are financially accountable 1o the City.
Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of the government’s
operations, and as a result, date from these unils are combined with data of the primary government. The City
had no such blended component units, Diseretely presented component units, on the other hand, are reported
1 a separate column in the primary government-wide statements 10 emphasize that they are legally separate
from the primary government. The Municipal Development District is considered to be a diseretely presented
component unit included within the reporting entity. Additionally, as the City is considered a primary
government for {inancial reporting purposes, its activities are not considered a part of any other governmental
or other type of reporting entity.

Considerations regarding the potential for inclusion of other entities, organizations or functions in the City's
{inancial reporting entity are based on criteria prescribed by generally accepted accounting principles. These
sane criteria are evaluated in considering whether the City is a part of any other governmental or other type
of reporting entity.




CITY OF ROCKDALE, TEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Exhibit A-11

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continned)

A

B.

Reporting Entity (Continued)

The overriding elements associated with prescribed eriteria considered in determining that the City's financial
reporting entity status is that of a primary government are that it has a separately elected governing body; it is
lepally separate; and it is fiscally independent of other state and local governments. Additionally prescribed
criteria under generally accepted accounting principles include considerations pertaining to organizations, for
which the primary government is financially accountable; and considerations perlaining to organizations for
which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary povernment are such shat exclusion
would cause the reporting entity’s financial statements 1o be misleading or incomplete.

Government-wide & Fund Financial Statements

Interfund activities between governmental funds and between governmental funds and proprictary funds
uppear as due to/due from on the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and Proprietary Fund Statement of Nel
Assets and as other resources and other uses on the governmental fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance and on the Proprietary Fund Stitement ol Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
Fund Net Assets, All interfund transactions between governmental funds are eliminated on the government-
wide statements. Interfund activities between governmental funds and enterprise funds remain on the
government-wide statements and appear on the government-wide Statement of Financial Position as internal
balances and on the Statement of Activities as interfund transfers, Tnterfund activities between governmental
fundls and fiduciary Funds remain as due to/due from on the government-wide Statement of Activities.

The fund financiad statements provide reports on the financial condition and results of operations for three
fund categories — povernmental proprictary, and fiduciary. Since the resources in the fiduciary funds cannot
be used for City operations, they are nol included in the government-wide statements, The City considers
somme governmental and enterprise funds major and reports their financial condition and results of operations
in a separate column,

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items, Operating revenues
result Trom providing poods amd services in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing
operations; they usually come from exchange or exchange-like transactions. All other revenues are non-
operating. Operating expenses can be tied specifically to the production of the goods and services, such as
materials and labor and direct overhead, Other expenses are non-operating,

Measurenent Focus and Basis of Accounting, and Finnncial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements use the economic resources measurement focus and the acerual
hasis ol accounting, as do the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund {inancial statements. Reveiues are recorded
when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the liming of the related
:ash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are fevied. Grants and similar
items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been
met.



CITY OF ROCKDALE, TEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Confinucd)
Exhibit A-#1

NOTE I -~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
C. Measuremend Focus and Basis of Accounting, snd Financial Statement Presentation (Continuned)

Governmental fund financial statements use the current financial resources measurement Tocus and the
maodified accrual basis of accounting, With this measurement focus, only current assets, current liabilities and
fund balances are included on the balance sheet, Operating statements of these funds present net increases and
decreases in current assets (i.e., revenues and other financing sources and expenditures and other financing
Uses),

The modified accrual basis of accounting recognizes revenues in the accounting period in which they become
both measurable and available, and it recognizes expenditures in the accounting period in which the tnd
liability is incurred, it measurable, exeept for un-matured interest and principal on fong-term debt, which is
recognized when due. The expenditures refated 1o certain compensated absences and claims and judgments
are recognized when the obligations are expected to liguidated with expendable avaifable financial resources.
The City considers all revenues available if they are coliectible within 60 days alter year end.

Revenues from local sources consist primarily of property taxes, sales tases, franchise taxes and other taxes,
Tax revenues and revenues received from the State are recognized under the “susceptible to acerual”™ concept,
that is, when they are both measurable and avaitable. The City considers themt “available” if they will be
collected within 60 days of the end ol the Niscal year. Fines and other miscellaneous revenues are recorded as
revenue when received in cash because they are generally not measurable until actually received. Investment
earnings are recorded as earned, since they are both measurable and available.

Grant funds are considered to be earned 10 the extent of expenditures made under the provisions ol the grast.
Accordingly, when such funds are received, they are recorded as deferred revenues until related and
authorized expendilures have been made. 1f balances have not been expended by the end of the project period,
grantors sometimes require the City to refund all or part of the unused amount.

The Proprietary Fund Types and Fiduciary Funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources
measurement foeus and utilize the accrual basis of accounting, This basis of accounting recognized revenues
in the accounting period in which they are earned and become measurable and expenses in the accounting
period in which they are incurred and become measurable. With this measurement focus, all assets and all
Habililies associated with the operaiion of these funds are included on the Proprietary Fund Statement of Net
Position. The fund equity is sepregated into invested in capital assets net of related debt. restricted net assets,
and unrestricted net assets.

Major Governmental Funds
The City reports the following major governmental funds,

General Fond ‘
The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund. it accounts for all financial resources except
those required to be accounted for in another fund. 1t is the largest of the City's funds and receives a
greater variety and number of taxes and other general revenues than any other fund. The general fund’s
resources also financial & wider range ol activities than any other fund,

3



CITY OF ROCKDALE, TEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Exhibit A-11

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation {Continued)

D.

E.

F

Mujor Governmentsl Funds (Continued)

General Fund (Continuned)
Functions financed by the general {und include administration, airport, library, streets, fire department,
community service parks, emergency medical services, municipal court, and police department,

2015 Combination Tax and Revenne Certificates of Obligation Fund
This fund accounts for the proceeds of a 2015 bond offering by the City for infrastructure improvements,

The City reports the following major proprictary fund;

Utility Fund

The Urility Fund accounts for the activities related to providing a source of waler, its purification and
distribution to customers, to providing sanitary collection, treatment and disposal of sewage and industrial
wastewater and solids, and providing sanitation services on a user charge basis,

Additionally, the City reports the tollowing fund types:
Governmental Funds:

Special Revenue Funds

The Special Revenne Funds accounts for resources restricted to, or designated for, specilic purposes by
the City or a granfor in a special revenue fund. Most Federal and some Staie linancial assisiance is
accounted for in a Speciat Revenue Fund, and sometimes unused balances must be returned to the grantor
at the close of specified project periods,

Fiduciary Funds;
Volunieer Firemen’s Pension Trust Fund

The Folunteer Firemen Pension Trust Fund accounts for the payment ol retirement benefits to volunieer
firemen,

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows for proprietary funds, the City considers highly liquid investments
lo be cashequivalents i they have a maturity of three months or fess when purchased.

Receivables

All receivables are reported at their gross value and, where appropriate, are reduced by the estimated portion
that is expected 1o be uncollectible,

lyventories

The City reports inventories at the lower of cost (fiest-in, first-out) or market for proprictary funds and at cost
for governmerdal funds,

32



CITY OF ROCKDALE, TEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Exhibit A-11

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {(Continucd)

F

G,

H.,

Inventories (Continued)

Inventory acquisitions are recorded in inventory accounts initially and charged as expenditures when used,
Special reporting treaiments are applied to governmental fund inventories 1o indicate that they do not
represent “available spendable resources,” even though they wre a component of net current assets.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initiad, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an
estimated useful life in excel of two years. Such assets, which include land, buildings, furmiture and
equipment, are reported in the applicable governmenial or business-type activities columng in the
government-wide financial statements, Such assels are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost
if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of
donation,

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add 10 the value of the asset or materially extend the
life of the asset are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as
projecis are constructed, Buildings, Nuniture and equipment of the City are depreciated using the straight-line
method over the following estimated useful lives:

Estimated
Asset Deseription Useful Lile
Buitdings 40 years
Water and sewer systems 5-40) yeary
Infrastructure 4-40 years
Equipment 5 years

Compensated Employee Absences

It is the City's policy to permit some employees 1o accummitale earned bul wnused vacation and sick pay
benefits. Vacation leave may be accumulated al the rate of 80 hours for each continuous year of employment
for full-time employees with 1 1o 7 years of service, For employees with 8 to 15 years of service, 120 hours
accumuiate each year. For employees with 16 or more years of serviee, 160 hours accumutate each year,
Limits exist on the amount of vacation leave which may be carried over from year to year. At the anniversary
date, an employee may carry forward vacation leave not 10 excead 80 hours. Sick leave credits accrue 1o all
employees at the rate of 96 hours for each full year of conlinuous service. Employees are nol paid for
accumudated sick teave upon termination; therelore, no Hability is acerved.

Yok
L



CITY OF ROCKDALE, TEXAS
NOTES TQ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Exhibit A-11

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Beferred Quiflows of Resourees

Deferred outilows of resources represent a consumption of nel position that applies to a future period(s) and
so will pot be recognized as an outflow of resources {expense/expenditure) until that time. Delerred outflows
of resources consist of differences between projected and actual investment carnings related 1o pensions and
pension contributions made subsequent to the nctuarial measurement date,

Deferred Inflows of Resourges

Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so
will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. Deferred inflows ol resources
consist of unavailable revenues (property fax revenues) and differences between expected and actual
economic experiences related 10 pensions, There were deferred inflows reported on the financial statements
and noles to the financial statements for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016 for property taxes and court
fees.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability. deferred outflows of resources and deferved inltows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the Fiduciary Net Position of the Texas
Muricipal Retirement System (“*TMRS™) and additions to/deductions from TMRS’s Fiduciary Net Posilion
have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by TMRS. For this purpose, plan contributions
are recognized in the period that compensation is reported for the employee, which is when contributions are
legally duc. Benefit payments are refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the
benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Long-Term Obligations

in the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements,
long-term debt and other fong-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental
activilies, business-type activities, or proprictary Tund type statement of net assets, Bond premiums and
discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective
interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance
costs are reported as deferred charges and amorlized over the term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiwms and discounts, as well as
bond issuance costs, during the current period, The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing,
sources. Premivms received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debi
issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt
proceeds received, are reported as debt-service expenditures.

Ned Position

Net position represents the difference between assels plus deferred outflows and Habilities plus deferred
inflows. Nel position invested in capital ussets, net of related debt consists of capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowing used for the acquisition,

construction or improvements of those assets, and adding back unspent proceeds.
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1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Net Position (Continoed)

Net positions are reported as restricted when there are fimitations imposed on their use either through the
enabling tegislations adopted by the City or through external restrictions imposed by ereditors, grantors or
faws or regulations of other povernmentad unils.

Fund Balances

The City has implemented GASB Statement No, 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Govermmmental Fund Type
Definitions, The City classifies governmental find balances in the governmental fund financial statements as
ToHows:

Non-spendable — includes fund balance amounts that cannot be spent either because it is not in spendable
form or because of legal or contractual constraints,

Restricted - includes fund batance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes which are externably
imposed by providers, such as creditors or amoums constrained due to constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation,

Committed — includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes that are internatly
imposed by the government through formal action of the highest level of decision making authority and
does not lapse ol year-end,

Assigned ~ includes fund balance amounts that are intended 1o be used Tor specific purposes that neither
considered restricted or committed. Fund Balance nmy be assigned by the Chy Couneil,

Unassigned — includes positive (und balsnces within the General Fund which has not been classified
within the above mentioned categories and negative fund balances in other governmental funds.

At September 30, 2019, the City does not have any committed or assigned fund balances.

The City requires restricied/committed amounts 1o be spend first when both restricted and unrestricted fund
balance is available unless there are legal documents/comracts that prohibit doing this, such as a grant
agreement requiring dollar for dollar spending. Additionally, the City would first use commiited then assigned
and lastly unassigned amounts of unrestricted fund balance when expenditures are made.

The City does not have a formal minimum fund balance policy,

Fstimates

The preparation ol financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management 1o make estimates and assumptions that affeet the reported amounts ol vevenues, and expenses
during the reported periods. Finat amounts could differ from those estimates.

Brate of Management's Review

in preparing the financial statements, the City has evaluated events and transaciions for potential recognition

or disclosure through March 2, 2020, the date that the financial staiements were svailable 1o be issued.
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NOTE 2 ~ RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. Explanation of certiin differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the government-
wide sintement of net position,

The governmental fund balance sheet includes reconciliation between the tofal fund balance of governmental
funds and the net position of governmemal activities, as reported in the government-wide statement of net
position, One element of that reconciliation explains that “Some liabilities, including bonds payable, interest
payable, notes payable, net pension fiability and accrued compensated absences are not reported as Habilities
in the governmental funds.”

The details of this $ 2,834,208 dilference are as follows:

Noles payable b -
Bonds payable 1,975,000
Capital leases 37096
Accrued interest piyable -
Net pension liability 658,837
Compensated absences payable 143,181

Net adjustient to reduce the 1otal of Tund balances of goveramental
funds to arrive at net position of governmental activitics 3 2834208

B. Explanation of certain differences betweea the governmental fund statement of revenucs, expenditures,
and changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities,

The governmental fund stalement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances includes a
reconciliation between net changes in fund balances — total governmental funds and the change in net position
of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide stitement of activities. One element of that
reconciliation explains that “Governmental funds report capital oullays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their uselul fives and reported as depreciation
expense.” The details of the $(19.211) difference by which capilal outlay exceeded depreciation expense are
as follows:

Capital outlay $ 0 3,532,944
Depreciation expense {417,706}

Net adjustment to decrense fund balsnee - totad governmental
funds to arrive at nef position - governmental sctivities $ 0 A1E5.23%
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NOTE 3 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A, Budgets

The Council adopts and “appropriated budget” Tor the General ¥und, the Debt Service Fund and the Capital
Projects Fund.

The following procedures are followed in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the general-purpose
financial statements,

I, No later than 60 days and no sooner than 120 days prior to September 30 the City prepares a budget
for the next succeeding fiscal year beginning October 1. The operating budget includes proposed
expenditures and the means of financing them,

r2

Meelings of the Councit are then called for the purpose of adopting the proposed budget — two
readings are required. At least ten days public notice of the meeting must be given.

3. Prior o September 30, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance by the Council.
Once a budgel is approved, it can only be amended ut the function and fund level by approval of a
majority of the members of the Council and in accordance with State laws. Amendments can be
presented 1o the Council at its regular meetings. Each amendment must have Council approval. As
required by law, such amendments are made before the fact, are reflected in the official minutes of the
Couneil, and are not made afier fiscal year end. Because the City has a policy of careful budgetary
control, one amendment was necessary during the year,

4. Each budget is controlled by City Management at the revenue and expenditure function/object level,
Budgeted amounts are as amended by the Council, All budget appropriations lapse at year end.

NOTE 4 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
A. Deposits

The City's funds are required to be deposited and invested under the terms of a depository contract pursuant
to state slatutes. The depository bank deposits, for safekeeping and trust with the City's agent bank, approved
pledged securities in an amount sufficient 1o protect City funds on a day-to-day basis during the period of the
contract, The pledge of approved securities is waived only Lo the extent of the depository bank’s doliar
amount of Federal Deposit Insurance Corpormtion (*FDIC™) insurance, The City's deposits in banks at year-
end were entirely covered by federal depository insurance or by acceptable collateral hield by the City's agent
in the City’s name,

B. lavestments

The Public Funds Investment Act ("PFIA™) contuing specific provisions in the areas of investment practices,
management reports and establishment of appropriate policies. Among other things, the PFIA requires the
City to adopt, implement, and publictze an investment policy. That policy must address the following areas:
(1) safety of principal and ligquidity, (2) portlolia diversification, (3) atlowable investments, (4) aceeptable risk
levels, (5) expected rates of return, (6) maximum atlowable stated maturity of portfolio investments, (7)
maximum average dollar-weighted maturity allowed based on the stated maturity date for the portfolio, (8)
investment stalf quality and capabilities, (9) and bid solicitation preferences for centificales of deposit.
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NOTE 4 - DEPOSITS & INVESTMENTS (Continued)

B. Investments (Continued)

Statules authorize the City 1o invest in (1) obligations of the U.S, Treasury, certain LLS, agencies, and the
State ol Texas; (2) certificates of deposit, (3) certain municipal securities, (4} money market savings accounts,
(5) repurchase agreements; (6) bankers acceptances. (73 mutual funds, (8) investment pools, (9) puaranteed
investment contracts, (10) and common trust Runds,

Councii has adopted a written investment policy regarding the investment of its funds as defined by the PFIA,
The investments of the City are in compliance with the Couneil’s tnvesiment policy. The City’s investment
policy addresses the following risks:

b.

<.

d.

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits: in the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event oi'a bank
lailure, the City's deposits may not be retarned (o it The City is not exposed to custodial credit risk
for its deposits that are either covered by depository insurance and /7 or are collateralized.

Custodisi Credit Risk for Investments; The City's investment policy is to apply the prudent-person
rule: Invesiments are made as a prudent person would be expected to acl, with discretion and
intelligence, to seck reasopable income, preserve capital, and, in general. avoid speculative
investments. The Clty’s ibvestiments in the bonds of ULS. agencies were rated AAA by Standard &
Poors snd Firth Ratings, and Aaa by Moady's [nvestors Service.

Interest Rate Risk — T'o Hmit the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely aftect the fair value
of investments, the City invests operating funds primarily in local government investment pools or
other investments similar to money macket funds, and by structuring the investment portfolio so that
investments malure to meet cash requirement.

Concentration of Credit Risk — This is the risk of loss attributed to | the magnitude of a government’s
investment in a single issuer. The City excess Funds were in a local bank covered by FDIC or
collateralized by pledged securitics,

Foreign Currency Risk for Investments — The city does nol have any investiments denominated in a
foreign currency.

C. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The City’s cash and cash equivalenis consist of cash on hand and demand deposits, The City’s cash and cash
gouivalents at September 30, 2019, are shown below,

Book Fair

Balance Value
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4147418 0§ 4147418
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents S 4147418 5 41474158

Investments
As of September 30, 2019, the City did not hold any investments,
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NOTE 5 - PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes are levied by October 1 on the assessed value listed as o the prior January | for all real and business
personal property located in the City in conformity with Subtitle I, Texas property Tax Code. Taxes are due on
receipt of the tax bill and are delinquent if not paid before February 1 of the year following the year in which
imposed. On January 1 of each year, a tax Hen atlaches to property to secure the payment of all taxes, penalties, and
interest ultimately imposed. Property tax revenues are considered available (1) when they become due or past due and
receivable within the current period and {2) when they are expected 1o be collected during a 60-day period afier the
close of the City*s fiscal year,

The county-wide Appratsal District is required under the Property Tax Code to assess all property within the
Appraisal District on the basis of 100 percent of its appraised value. The value of property within the Appraisal
District must be reviewed at least every five years, The City may challenge appraised values established by the
Appraisal District trough various appeais and, if necessary, legal action.

Delinguent taxes are prorated between maintenance and debt service based on rates adopted for the year of the levy.
Allowances for uncollectible tax receivables within the General Debt Service Funds are based on historical experience
in collecting property faxes. Uncollectible personal property taxes are periodically reviewed and written off, buf the
City is probibited from writing off real property taxes without specific statutory authority {rom the Texas Legislature,

Property laxes receivable, as of September 30, 2019, consists of the {ollowing:

General
Tax Year Fund
2019 b 73,740
2018 26,682
2047 10,099
2t6 6,983
2015 4,368
2014 and prior 19,619
Totals 141,493

39




CITY OF ROCKDALE, TEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Exhibit A-11

NOTE 6 - RECEIVABLES

Receivables as of year-end for the government’s individual major and non-major funds, including the applicable
allowances for uncollectible amounts, are as lollows:

General Utility
Fund Fund Totals
Net Receivables
Taxes & 213,399 % -8 213,399
Accounts - 785,551 785,551
Fines - - -
Other 29,721 . 39,73t
Totals b 243,120 $ 785,551 1,028,671

Governmental funds report deferred inflows of resonrces in connection with receivables for revenues that are not
considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period, A1 the end of the current fiscal year, the various
components ol deferred inflows of resources reporied in the governmental funds were as Tollows:

Unavailable

Genernl Fund:
Delivquent propenty laxes receivable 3 141,493
Fines -
Total General Fuand b 141,493

NOTE 7 - INTERFUND TRANSFERS
Interlund transfers are used Lo move revenues from the Tund with collection awthorization 1o other Tunds to finance
various proprmns and projects of the City. Vor the year ending September 30, 2018, interfund transfers were as

follows:

Transfers In

2815 Comb, Othier
Goneral Tax/Rev.CO Governmental
Transfers Out Fund Fund Funds Totals
Lititity Fund 5 {169818) § 1020833 % (131,854 % 719,181
Tatals $ (169818 § 1020853 &% (F3LE34) % 719,181

40



CITY OF ROCKDALE, TEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Exhibit A-11
NOTE 7~ INTERFUND TRANSFERS (Continued)
During the 2018 fiscal year, the transfers 1o the General Fund {rom the vartous funds were made to reimburse the
General Fund for various services as well as to assist with the overall operational expenditures incurred by the
General Fund,

NOTE 8 ~ INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES

The imerfund receivables and payables generally represent short-term loans 1o cover temporary cash flows and
reimbursements for various funds. As of September 30, 2019, interfund receivables/payables were as follows:

Due From Other FFunds

. Other
Utility Governmental
Due to Other Fonds Fundd Fands Towls
General Fund L - % - % -
Other Governmental Funds - - -
Fotals $ -8 - % -

NOTE 9 - CAPITAL ASSETS

On the following page is & sumimary ol ehanges in capilal assets for the year ended September 30, 2019,
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Governmemd Activities:

Crpitad assets not being depreciated:
Lawul
Construetion in Progress

Total capital assels not being depreciansd:

Capital assets being deprecinted:
Buildings and improvements
Eguipment
Infrastructure

Total capital ussets being deprociated

Less: Accwmulated Depreciation lor
Buildings and improvements
Lauipmen)
Lifrastrucire
Total Accumulated Depreciation
Total capitd assets being deprecinted, net
Governmental petivities eapital assets, el

Bustness-Type Activities:

Cupital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Canstruction in progress

Total capitad assets not being deprecinied:

Cupitasl assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements
Eguipment
Infrastructare

Tolal capital assets being deprecioted

Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Buikdings and improvements
Equipment
Infrastracture

Totwd Aceumulated Deprecistion

Total capitaf assets being deprecinted, net

Business-Type activities copital assets, net

CITY OF ROCKDALE, TEXAS

Fxhibit A-11

Balances Balanees
Oct. 1, 2018 Additions Retirements Sept. 30, 214 Y

h A % - 5 - 3 410,11

HoA11 - - AT

2158911 3447018 - 5,605,929

2771062 85,926 - 1856988

5,912,691 . - 5,912,091

1,842,604 1532944 - 14,375,608
(1.211,05%) (136,530} - (L37.5910)
(2,145,260 {117.459) - (2,262,719}
(4,203,902} (I63,75D) . 4.367.613)
(7,560,217 n7z0ey - (1977923

3,282 447 3,115,234 - 0,397,685

5 A6UL55E % 3115238 8 -8 6,807,744

hY 505060 % - % - % 50,506

b3 30,506 b3 - 5 - % 3,500

361,058 - - 361053

{ AL, 78S 7.082 - 1,302,467

21884099 1,720,624 - 23,604.723

23739937 1,728,306 - 25,468,243
(195.598) (5.198) - (203.790)
(393,484) (21.424) - (416,913)
(8,504,224} {HA5,950) - (3160170
(9,095,311} (6835,372) - (9. 780.883)

14, 0:1:0L020 1042, 734 - 13,687,360

$ O 14,095132 % THEET3 % -

b §5.7.17.800
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NOTE Y - CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Depreciation was charged to functions of the primary governmenl as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General government 63472
Public safety 165,996
Highways and streets 141,942
Community services 1,250
Culture and recreation 45,040
Total Deprecintion Expense-Governmental Activities 5 417,706

Business-Type Activities:
Lititity $ 685,57
Total Depreciation Lixpense-Business-lype Adtivilies $ 0685
NOTE - LEASES

)
et
e

Capital Lease

The City has entered into lease agreements for the acquisition of a (ractor/shredder, Copsync soltware, sircel sweeper,
backhoe, Chevy pickup and three other wrucks. These lease agreements qualify as capital leases for accounting
purposes and, therefore, have been recorded at the present value of their future minimum lease payments as of the
inception date.

The assets acquired through a capital lease are a5 follows:

General Utility
Fund Fund
Assel:
Vehigles, machinury & equipment 5 227,957 % 40,829
Less: aceomulated depreciation (94,216} (17.020}
Total 3 133,741 % 23,809
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NOTE 10 -~ LEASES (Continued)

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present vatue of these minimum lease paymenis as of September
30, 2019,

Year Ended Goveramental Activities Business-Type Activities
September M), Principal Interest Principai Interest Totals
2020 34,904 1,707 7.388 295 44,354
2021 22,226 - - - 22,106
Totals 5 57090 s 1707 S 7388 % 295§ 00,580

NOTE 11 - LONG-TERM DEBT

General Obfigation Bonds and Certificates of Obligation
The City issued certificates ol obligation to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital
facilities. Certificates of obligation have been issued for both governmental and business-type activities.

During the 2015 fiscal year, the City issued the Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation Series 2015,
in the amount of 3,000,000, for the purchase of materials, supplies, equipnent, and machinery for public works and
public safety purposes,

A summary of governmental activitics general obligation bonds and certificates of obligation outstanding as of
September 34, 2019, follows:

Original Reginning Ending
Interest fssue Balances Balances
Rutes Asnount Outstanding Issued Retired Outstanding
Governmental Activities
Series 2006 CO Bonds 4. T3% 2,900,000 745,000 - 8,008 H6HS,000
Series 2008 Redunding Bonds 4,368 580,000 245,000 - 45,000 200,000
Series 2008 Tax Notes 2.35-4,15% 500,000 - - -
Series 2001 Tax/Rev CO) Bomds 3.32% 2075000 270,000 - 154430 255,000
Reries 2005 Tax/Reyv CO Bonds 333 100,000 905,000 - 50,000 835,000
$ 68000 % - 5 190,000 S 1975000
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NOTE 11— LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

The annual debl service requirements for all governmesntal activities general obligation bonds and certificates of
obligation outstanding as of September 30, 2019, are as follows:

Year ended Governmental Activities
Sept. 30, Principal Interest

2020 195,000 73,522
2021 205,000 65,678
2022 215,000 37.338
2023 320,004 0476
2024 194,000 43,1062
2025 200,000 35348
2026-2030 535,000 80,562
2031-2032 113,000 14,235
Totals $ 1,975,000 % 420,34

A summary of business-type activities long-term debt outstanding as of September 30, 2019, follows:

Oviginal Beginning Ending
Interest Jssue Halunees Balances

Rate Amouont Cutstanding Issuerd Retired Outstanding

Business-Type Activities
Series 2005 Comb CO Bonds 2,8-4.05%  § 0300000 % - 3 - % -~ & -
Serjes 2006 CO Bonds 4.73% 2,900,000 763,000 . 81,000 685,000
Note Payable o TxDOT 4.00% 1,000,000 - - - -
Series 201 | Tax/Rev CO Bonds 3.32% 1,624,056 1,323,000 - 85,000 1,240,000
Series 2012 CO Bonds 0.9-3.35% 523,000 335,000 - 35,000 300,800
Series 2043 CO Bonds 3149 525,000 375000 - 30,000 345,000
Series 2013 CO Bonds 335% 2,000,000 1,905,000 - 30,000 1,875,000
Series 2000 Tax/Rev €O Bonds 2.23% 240,000 2,740,000 - 95,000 2,645,000
Series 2H6 GO Bonds 1.76% 3,860,000 3.0014,000 - 410,000 2,600,000
Series 2017 Tax/ReviCO Bonds 3.05% 1,025,000 025,000 - 45,000 280,000
Totals $ L8000 % - % B10,000 % 10,670,000
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NOTE 11 - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

The annual requirements to amortize al) business-type activities general obligation bonds and certificates of obligation
outstanding as of September 30, 2019, are as follows;

Year Ended Business-Type Activities

Sept 30, Principal Enterest
2020 840,000 281,185
2021 #oO,000 260,331
2022 880,000 238,841
2023 5000 212000
2024 953,000 203,158
20235 80,000 F83.384
2026-1030 3. 880,000 526,874
2031-2032 1.370.000 30.580
Totals 10,670,000 1,956,562

The Tollowing is a sunmmary of changes in the City’s total governmental and business-type long-term liabifities as of
September 30, 2049,

Amounts
Balances Balaince Bue Within
Oct. 1, 2018 Additions Reductions  Sept. 34, 2019 One Year
Governmental Aclivities:
Certiticutos o) obligation $ 2065000 % -5 (B0000y 5 197000 % 195,000
Tax noles - - - - -
Capital Bases 9316 - (34,126} 37,190 34,4904
Net pension liabiliy 387405 270,932 - 638,837 -
Net OPEB Liability 102,463 872 103,335
Compensated absences 27,556 113,625 - 143,181 -
Total Govervmental Activities 5 2,774,240 § 387,420 % (224,136) § 2037543 5 229,064
Business-Type Activities: -
Certiticates of obligation $OLLABDO00 8 - 8 (RI0H000) % 10670000 %5 BHL000
Notes puyable - - - - -
Capital leases 14,492 - {(7.104) 7.388 7.388
Net pension lability 140,577 93,122 “ 233,699 -
Net OPEDB Liability 34,154 291 34,445
Compensated absences 9,185 38,542 - 47,727 -
Total Business-Type Activities  § 11678408 % $IEDSS % (RI7J04) S EOLO93250 % 847188

Long-term liabilities applicable to the city’s governmental activities are not due and payable in the current period, and
aceordingly, are not reported as fund Habilities in the governmental Junds. Interest on long-term debt is not accrued in
governmerral funds, but rather is recognized as an expenditure when due:

For gavernmental activities. compensated absences are generadly liquidated by the General Fund,
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NOTE 12 - FUND BALANCES

The Govermmental Accounting Standards Board has issucd Statement No, 54, Fuanl Balance Reporting and
Governmental Fund Type Definitions ("GASB 347, GASB 54 defines the different types of fund balances that a
govermmental entity must use Tor financial reporting purposes, GASB 54 requires the fund balance amounts to be
property reported within one of the following five lund balance categories:

Nonspendable;
To indicate amounts associated with inventories, prepaids, fong-term loans and notes receivable and property held for
resale (unless the proceeds are restricted, commitled or assigned).

Restricted:
To indicate amounts that have been legally separated for a specilic purpose; such as, grants, capilal acquisition from
bond proceeds and long-term det,

Committed:

This indicates amounts that require Council action 1o be wvsed for a specific purpose; such as, construction
improvements not funded by bond proceeds, Formal action by City Council, which consists of majority approval of an
ordinance, fo commit funds must occur prior (o fiscal year-end and can only be modified or removed by the same
formal action. Once adopted, the limitation imposed by the ordinance remains in place until a similar action is taken
(the adoption of another ordinance} to remove or revise the limitation.

Assipgned:

This indicates amounts that do not require Council approval but are imended to be used for a specific purpose, as
determined by an official or body to which the Council has delegated autherity; such as, the Finance Direcior or City
Manager. Council has, by resolution, authorized the Finance Director or City Manager to assign {und balance. The
Council may also assign fund balance as it does when appropriating fund balance to cover a gap between ostimated
revenue and appropriations in the subsequent year's uppropriated budget. These amounts do not meet the criteria 1o be
classified as restricted or committed.

Unassigned:

This indicates residual amounts in the General Fund that are available 10 finance operating expenditures. In other
funds, this classification is used only 1o report a deficil balance resulting from overspending for specific purposes for
which amounts had been restricted, committed, or assigned.

In circumstances where an expenditure is made for a purpose for which amounts are available in multiple fund
balance classifications, fund balance is penerally depleted in the order of restricted, committed, assigned and
unassigned.
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Fund balances for all major and nommnajor governmental funds as of September 30, 2019, were distributed as follows:

2015 Other
General Tas/Rev CO  Governmental
Fund fund Fumds Totals
Nonspendable:
inventory $ 6,454 % - % - 3 0,454
Subtotal 6,454 - - 6,454
Restricted for;
Special projects - - 360,933 360,933
Capital projects - 226,288 - 226,288
Debt service - - 1,424,920 1,424,920
Subtotal - 226,288 1,785,853 2,012,141
Unassigned 617419 - - 617419

Tatals 3 623,873 3 226288 5 1785833 § 2,636,014
GASB 34 requires disclosure of any formally adopted minimum fund balance policies. The Cily does not currently
have any such policies.

NOTE L3 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

Plan Deseription ‘

The City of Rockdale, Texas, participates as one of 860 plans in the nontraditional, joint contributory, hybrid detined
benefit plan administered by the Texas Municipal Retirement Systens ("TMRS™), TMRS is an agency created by the
State of Texas and administered in accordance with the TMRS Act, Subtitle G, Title 8, Texas Government Code {*the
TMRSE Act™) as an agent multiple-employer retirement system for municipal employees in the State of Texas. The
TMRS Act places the general administration and management of the System with a six-member Board of Trustees.
Although the Governor, with the advice and consent of the Senate, appoints the Board, TMRS is not fiscally
dependent on the State of Texas, TMRS's defined benefit pension plan is a tax-qualified plan under Section 401 (a) of
the Internal Revenue Code. TMRS issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report (“CAFR™) that
can be obtained at wwnw s com.

Benefits Provided
TMRS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Benelit provisions are adopted by the gaverning body of the
City, within the options avaifable in the stale statutes governing TMRS.

At retirement, the benefit is caleulated as it the sum of the employee’s contibutions, with interest, and the City-
financed monetary credits with interest were used 1o purchase an annuity, Members may choose 1o reecive their

retivemnent benefit in one of seven payment options.
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NOTE 13 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued)

Members may also choose to receive n portion of their benelit as a Partial Lump Sum Distribution in an amount equal
o 12, 24, or 36 monthly payments, which cannot exceed 753% of the member's deposits and interest.

Plan provisions adopted by the City are as follows:

Employee deposit rate 5%
Municipal current matehing ratio 2-1
Updated service credit:
Rate (%) 100
Year effective 2004R*
Inereased benefils 1o retirees;
Rate (%) 70
Year effective 2004R*

Military service credit effective date
Buyback effective date

Vesling Fyrs

Service retirement eligibilitics 5 yrs/age 60, 20 yrs/any age
Restricted prior service credit effective date 7-01
Supplemental death benefits Employees, Relirees
Statutory maximum (%) 11.5%

Annually repeating. Ordinance automatically renews effective January | of
cach successive year,

Employees cavered by henefit ferms,

At September 30, 2018 valuation and measurement date, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms,

2018
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 24
Inactive employees entitled 1o but not yet receiving benelits 36
Active employees L
Total 107 )

Contributions

The contribution rates for employees in TMRS are cither 5%, 0%, or 7% of emplovee gross earnings, and the city
matching percentages are either 100%. 150%, or 200%, both as adopted by the governing body of the city. Under
state law governing TMRS, the contribution rate for each city is determined annually by the actuary, using the Entry
Age Normal ("EAN™) actuarial cost method. The setuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary 1o
finance the cost of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additionsl amount 1o finance any unfunded
accroed Hability,
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NOTE 13— DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued)

Eployees lor the City of Rockdale, Texas, were required to contribute 5.0 of their annual gross camings during the
fiscal year, The contribution rates for the City of Rockdale, Texas, were 10.35% and 10.2% in calendar years 2018
and 2019, respeclively. The City’s contributions to TMRS for the year ended September 30, 2019, were $194.619,
and were equal to the required contributions.

Net Peasion Liability
The City's Net Pension Liability ("NPL™) was measured as of December 31, 2018, and the Total Pension Liability
(*“TPL™) used 1o caleulate the Net Pension Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.

Actaarial Assumptions:
The Total Pension Liability in the December 31, 2018, actuarial valumtion was determined using the following

acluarial assumptions:

[nflation 3.0% per year
Overall Payroll Growth 3.0% per year
Investment Rate of Return 7.0%, net of pension plan investment expense. including inflation

Salary increases were based on a service-related table. Mortalily rates for active members, retirees, and beneficiaries were
based on the gender-district RP2000 Combined Health Mortality Table with Blue Collar Adjustment, with male rates
multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103%. The rates are projected on a Rully generational basis by scale
BB 10 gecount For futwre mortality improvements, For disghled annuitants, the gender-distinet RP2000 Disabled, Retiree
Mortality Table is used, with slight adjngtments,

Actuarial assumptions used in the 2018, valuations were based on the results of actuarial experience studies, The
experience study in TMRS was for the period January 1, 2006, through December 31, 2009, first used in the December
31, 2010 valuation. Healthy post-retirement mortality rates and annuity purchase rates were updated based on a Mortality
Experience Investigation Study covering 2000 through 2011, and dated December 31, 2013, These assumptions were first
used in dlie December 31, 2013 valuation, along with a change 1o the Entry Age Normal ("EAN™) actuarial cost method,
Assumptions are reviewed annually. No additional changes were made for the 2014 valuation.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments is 6.75%. The pension plan’s policy in regard to the
allocation of invested assets is established and may be amended by the TMRS Board of Trustees. Plan assets are managed
on & tolal return basis with an emphasis on both capital appreciation as well as the production of income, in order to
satisfy the short-term and long-term funding needs of TMRS,

The fong-term expected rate of retum on pension plan investiments was determined using a building block method in

which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class,
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NOTE 13 — DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Centinued)
These ranges are combined io produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected {uture real

rales of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target atlocation and
best estimales ol arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summartzed in the following table:

Asset Class Target Allocation  Long-Term Expected Real Rate of Return (Arvithmetic)
Domestic Equity 17.5% 4,80%
intermational Equity 17.5% 6.05%
Core Fixed Income 30.0% 1.50%
Non-Care Fixed Income 10.0% 3.50%
Real Relurn 5.0% 1.75%
Real Estate 10.0% 5.25%
Absolute Return 5.0% 4,25%
Private Lquity 5.0% 8.50%
100.06%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used 10 measure the Total Pension Liability was 6,75%. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed that employee and employer contributions will be made at the rates specified in
statute. Based on that assumption, the pension plan’s Fiduciary Net Position was projected to be available to make all
projected future benelil payments ol current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of
return on pension plan investments was applied 10 all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total
Pension Liability.
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Changes in the Net Pension Liability

Incrense {Decrease)

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Nt Penston
Liability Net Position Linbility
{a) (h {#) - (b}
Baiance at 12/34/17 $ 5247083 % 4,718.0601 5 52882
Changes for the veur
Service cost 234,754 - 234,754
Interest 357,052 - 357,052
Chisisge of bene i 1erms - - -
Difierence between expected and actuat experience {20,093 - {&(,093)
Changes bo assunplions - - -
Contributions - cmployer - 194,619 {194.619)
Comributions - emplioyee - 97.407 (97.407)
Net investment incom . (14 1,4960) I41.496
Benefit payments, including relunds of employer contribution (149,586} (149,580) -
Administrative expense - (2,733) 2,732
Other changes - (+42) 142
Net ehanges $ 02 b {1,930y & 364,054
Balance at 12/31/18 % 5600207 % 4. 716,071 5 8913536

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net pension Hability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 6.75%, as well as
what the City’s net pension Hability would be il it were calculated using a discount rate that is l-percentage-point
fower (5.75%) or {-percentage-point higher (7.75%:) than the current rate:

1% Decrease in 1% Increase in
Discount Rate (5.75%) Discount Rate (6.75%) Discount Rate (7.75%)
Clity's net penston Hability 5 LodDoRd 8 892,336 8§ 278,396

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s Fiduciary Net Position is available in a separately-issued TMRS
{inancial report. That report may be obtained on the internet at www.tmrs.com.

Pensgion Hxpense and Deferved Outfiows of Resources and Delerred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions,

For the year ended September 30, 2019, the City recognized penston expense of $179,039,

L% )
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NOTE 13 ~ DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Coatinued)

Al September 30, 2019, the City reported deferred outilows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Qutflows Peferred Inflaws

of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected anil actual ceconamic exp b - % (55,525)
Changes i actisrial assumptions -
Difference between projecied and actual investments 368,001 {229,608}
Contributions subseqguent o the measurement dale - -
Totals b 368.0M 5 (285,133)

$(536,282) reported as deferred inflows of resources retated o pensions resulting from contributions subsequent to
the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability for the year ending September 30,
2018, Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in
pension expense as follows:

Yuear ended Dec 31

2019 {1.618)
2020 (34,574}
2021 28,209
2022 92,0
2023 -

Thercafler -
% B4,018

Supplemental Death Benefits Fund

The City also participates inn the cost sharing multiple-employer deflined benefit group-term life insurance plan
operated by TMRS known as the Supplemental Death Benefits Fund ("SDBE"), The City clected, by ordinance 10
provide group-lerm life insurance coverage to both current and retived employees. The City may terminate coverage
under and discontinue participation in the SDBF by adopting an ordinance before November 1 of any year {o be
clfective the following Janoary 1.

The death benefit for active employees provides a lump-sum payment approximately equal to the employee's annual
salary (calculated based on the employee’s actual eamings, for the 1 2-momth period preceding the month of death);
retired employees are insured for $7,500; this coverage is an “other posiemployment benefit,” or OPEB.

The City contributes to the SDBT al a contractually required rate as determined by an annual actuarial valuation. The
rate is equal 10 1he cost of providing one-year term life insurance. The funding policy for the SDBF program is to
assure that adequate resources are available 1o meet all death benefit payments for the upeoming year; the intent is not
1o pre-fund retiree term life insurance during employee’s entive careers.

The city’s contributions to the TMRS SDBF for the liscat years ending September 30, 2017, 2016 and 2015 were
$888, $888, and $873 respectively, which equaled the required contributions Jor each year,
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Net Othier Post Employment Benefits Liability,
Actuarial Assumptions

Actuarial assumptions were developed from the actuarial investipation of the experience of TMRS vver the four yeur period
[rom December 31, 2010 to December 31, 2014, These assumptions were adopted in 2015 and first used in the December
31, 2015 valuation,

All administrative expenses are paid through the Pension Trust and aceounted for under reporting requirements under GASB
Statement No. 68,

The Mortality Experience [nvestigation Study covering 2009 thraugh 2011 is used as the basis for the post-retirement
mortality assumption {or healthy annuitants and Annuity Purchase Rate (APRs). Montality Rates for service employees uses
the RP2000 Combined Mortality Tabic with Biue Collar Adjustment with male rates multiplied by 109% and female rates
multiplied by 103%. The rates are projected on a fully generational basis with scale BB {0 account for future mortality
improvements subject to the 3% floor,

inflation 2.50% per year
Overall payroll growth 3.50 (o 10.5% per vear including inflation
Discount rate 3131%

Changes in the Net Other Post Employment Benefits Lisbility
Inerease (Decrease)
Total OPEB Liability

Balance at 12/31/17 3136,617
Changes for the year

Service Cost 8,767
Interest on Total QPEB liability 4,051
Changes of benelit lerns 0
Differences between expected and actuad experience (2.526)
Changes in assumption or other inputs (8,755
Benefil payments (974
Net changes 1.163
Total OPER Liability - end of yeur $137.780
Total OPEB Liability as a Percentage of Covered Payroll T7.07%

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The Toltowing presents the total OPER fiability of the City, caleutated using the current discount rate of 3.3 1% as well as
what the City’s total OPEB liability would be ilit were caleulated using a discount rate that is 1 percentiage point lower
(2.31%) or -1 percemtage point higher (4.31%) than the current rate. Because the SDBF is considered an unfunded trust, the
refevant discount rale to caleulate the otal OPEB liabitity is based on the Fidelity Index's 20 year Municipal GO AA Index.

1% Decrease in 1% Increase in
Discount Rate (2.31%) Discount Rate {3.31%) Discount Rate (4.31%)
Total OPEB liability 161,254 $137,780 $119,144
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Deferred
{Inflow) Outllow

CITY OF ROCKDALE
SCHEDULE OF OPEB EXPENSE
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

1. Total Service Cost 8,767
2. Interest on the Total OPEB Liability 4,651
3. Changes in Benefit terms .
4, Employer administrative costs
5. Recognition of deferred outflows/inflows of resources
6. Difference between expected and actual experience {513}
7. Changes in assumptions or other inputs 158
8 Total OPEB Expense 13,063

CITY OF ROCKDALE

SCHEDULE OF OPEB QUTFLOWS AND INFLOWS - CURRENT AND FUTURE EXPENSE
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019
Recognition 2018
Period {or Totad (Inflow) Recognized
amortization  or Outflow of in current
¥1s) Resources pension expense

Due to Liabilities:

Difference in expeeted
and actua) experience 49200 $ (2,520) 5 (513
[actuatial {gains) or losses)

Difference in assumption changes 4.9200 S (8,755) 5 (1,77
[actuarial (gains) or losses)
$(2,292)
Deferred Outflows and Delerred Inllows of Resources, by year, to be recognized in fulure pension
expense as follows:
Net deferred

outflows

(inflows) of

PESOUFCES
2019 $ (355
2020 {355)
2021 (509)
2022 {2,113)
2023 -

Therealler -

Tolal % (3,33

55

in fulure expense

§ (2.013)

5 (6,9706)

5 (8,989)
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Other Information

Due to the SDRF being considered an unlunded OPEB plan, benefit payments are treated as being equat to the employer’s yearly
comributions for retivees, No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the eriteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No, 75
o pay related benefits. 1n order Lo determine the retivee portion of the City"s Supplemental Death Benefit Plan contributions {that
which is considered OPEB), the City should perform the following calculation:

Folal covered payroll * retiree Portion of $DB Contribution (Rate)

NOTE 14 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed 1o various risks of loss reiated 1o torts, thefl, damage or destruction of assets, error and omissions,
injuries to employees, and natural disasters. The City's risk management program includes coverage for property,
generad liability, automobile liability, public officials’ Hability and employee dishonesty bonds. The City participates
in the Texas Municipal League {(TML) Joint Seli-Insurance Fund, which is a public entity risk pool. The premiumns
paid to TML. result in the transfer of risk 1o the pool.

NOTE 15 - FIREMEN’S RELIEF AND RETIREMENT FUND

Volunteer firemen for the City participate in the Firemen's Reliel and Retirement Fund (Firemen™s Pension Trust), a
single employer defined benefit plan. The plan its contribution obligations and its benefit provisions were established
by State Legislaion. Members can retire at age 55 and above with 20 or more years of service aiud are Tully vested al
that time. In addition 1o retirement benefils, the plan also provides death and disability benefits, Each person who is a
member of the retirement system as & current volunteer fire fighter is required to contribute annual dues of $5 which
may be paid by the City. The City is responsible for all additional comributions (0 meet the benefit requirements of’
the plan,

The funding policy has been for the City to make the contribution necessary to meet current benelit payments. No
actuarial valuation has been performed to determine the pension benefit obligation or to determine contribution
requirements for the purpose of amortizing any unfunded actuarial accrued lability. Benefit payments made from the
pension trust during the year amounted 1o $3,400.

NOTE 16~ LITIGATION

Counsel for the City is not aware ol and is unable to predict at this time the possibility of future litigation.
Muanagement feels that the City’s insurance coverage is sufficient Lo cover possible Hubility resutting (rom ltigation
exposure and adverse decisions,

NOTE 17 - HEALTH CARE COVERAGE

During the year ended September 30, 2018, employees of the City were covered by a health insurance plan (the
“Plan™). The city paid premiums of $219.624 (o the Plan, Employees, at their option, authorized payroll withholding
to pay premiums for dependents. All premiums were paid o a licensed insurer. The Plan was authortzed by Article
3.51-2, Texas lnsurance Code and was documented by contractual agrecient.

The contract between the City and the ticensed insurer is renewable October 1, and terms of coverage and premium
costs are ineluded in the contractual provisions,
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NOTE 8 ~ IMPLEMENTATION OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
In the current fiscal year, the Cily implemented the following new standards:

GASD Statement No. 68, Aceannting and Financial Reporting for Pensions (*ASB 68™), replaces the requirements of
GASB Statement No. 27, dccomning for Pensions by State and Local Governmental Employers, as well as the
requirements of GASB Statement No. 30, Pension Disclosures, as they relate to pension plans administered as trusts
or cquivalent arrangements thal meet certain criterial. This Statement establishes standards for measuring and
recognizing Habilities, deferred outlows of resources, and deferred inflows of resources, and expense/expenditures.
For defined benefit pensions, this Statement identifies the methods and assumptions that should be used to project
benelit payments, discount projected benefit payments 1o their actuarial present value, and atribute that present value
to periods of employee service,

GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Comtribwtions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date ~ and
Amendment of GASB 68 (“*GASB 71™), tequires employer contributions made between the measurement date, which
is the date used to determine an employer’s net pension liability ("NPL™), and the employer’s fiscal year end be
reported as a deferred outflow of resources (“DOoR™).
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CITY OF ROCKDALE, TEXAS
Exhibit B-1
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND
Year Ended September 30, 2019

Variance
Budgeted Amounts from Final
Origingl Final Actua) Budgel
Revenues
Taxes:
Property $ 1,440,078 1,440,078 % 1570858  § 130,780
Sales 800,000 800,000 812,383 12,383
Franchise 266,300 260,300 289,070 2779
Penalties and interest 25,186 25,186 34,405 9219
Licenses and permits 7,000 7,000 34,169 27,169
Fines 346,203 346,203 168,294 (177,900)
Charges lor services 212,344 212,344 513,957 3010613
investment carnings 12,600 12,600 43,682 31,082
Other 9,020 9,020 223,600 214,580
Total Revenues 3,118,731 3,118,731 3690427 571,696
Expenditures
Current:
General government 546,458 546,458 554,985 (8,527)
Public salety 1,634,357 1,634,357 1,337,101 297.256
Highways and streets 515,550 515,550 507.628 7.922
Community services - - 121,259 (121,259
Health services - - - -
Culture and recreation 678,360 678,366 216,577 (238.211)
Capital outlay - - 11,490 {11,490)
Debt Service: -
Principal retirement 35,931 {35,931)
Total Expenditures 3,374,731 1.374,731 3,484,974 {110,240)
{Deficiency) of Revenues
(Under) Expenditares {256,000) (256,000) 205,456 461,456
Qfher Finaneing Sources {Uses)
Capital leases - -
Fransfers in - - (169,818) (169,818}
Fransers {out) - - -
Total Other Financing Sources (Fises) - - (169,818) (169,818)
Net Change in Fund Balance {256,000) (256,000 35,638 291,638
Fund Balance - Beginning 588,235 588,235 588,235
Fund Balance - Ending S 332235 332,235 0% 623,873 % 291,638
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September 30, 2019

A, Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

City Council adopts an appropriated budget for the General Fund, Debt Service Fund and the Capital Projects
Fund. The following procedures are followed in establishing the budgetary date reflected in the general purpose
financial statements:

1. No later than 60 days and no sooner than 120 days prior to September 30, the City prepares a budget for the
next suceeeding fiscal year beginning October |, The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and
the means of linancing them.

[

Meetings of City Council are then calted lor the purpose of adopting the proposed budget - fwo meetings are
required. At least 10 days public nofice ol the meeting must be given,

3. Prior to September 30, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance by the Council. Onee a
budget is approved, it can only be amended at the function and fund level by approval ol a majority of the
members of the Council and in accordance with State laws. Amendments can be presented to the Councit at
its repular meetings, Each amendment must have Council Approval. As required by law, such amendments
are made before the tact, are reflected in the official minutes of the Council and are net made after fiscal year-
end. Because the Cily has a policy of cureful budgetiry control, there were no amendments during the current
fiscal year,

B. Budgetary Legal Complinpee

For the year ending September 30, 2019, the City complied with budgetary restrictions at all departinental levels
except the following:

Fund/Department Budget Actual Variance
General Fund:
General government 346,458 554,985 (8,527}
Highways and streets 315,550 507.628 7912
Communily Services - 121,259 {121,259
Culture & recreation 078,366 916,577 (238,21 1)
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CITY OF ROCKDALE, TEXAS

TEXAS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM - SCHEDULE OF CHANGES
IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
L.ast Fen Years™

2018 2017 2016 2018

Total Pension Liability
Servive cost $ 234751 % 225612 % 225013 % 209927
Interest {on the total peasion Hability} 357,052 343,183 316,400 302,987
Changes of benelit terms - - - “
Dilferenee between expected and actua)

expuriense {80,003 {220,194) (4,999} (713.377)
Change of assumptions - - - 32,000
Benefit payments, including relunds of

employee contribtions {149,386 {149,586) {124,970} (124,432)
Net Change in Total Pension Liability 362,124 199,045 411,538 34704
Total Pension Linbility - Beginning 5.247.083 5,044,286 4,632,748 4,285,634
Total Pension Liability - Ending () TSR XS24 S add I8 TR4G6I2 AR

Plan Fidugiary Net Position

Comributions » aimployer § 19619 5 18428 180,429 177,803
Contributions - employee 97,407 93,074 93,532 §9,330
Net investinent income (141,490 559,102 246,101 5,138
Benelit payviments, including refunds ol

cmployee contributions (149,580) {145,804 (124,976) (124430
Administrative espensce (2.732) (2,895} (2.777) (3141
Other {142) (146) {150y {155)
Net Change in Phan Fiduclary Net Position (1,230) 687,012 302,159 144,503
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning 4,718,60] 4,030,989 3,638,830 3,494,267
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b) SATT667T % A718,60] 4,030,989 3,038,830
Net Pension Liability - Ending (a) - (b} § 892536 % 524,700 1,013,297 993,918

Plan Fiduciary Nei Position as a _
Percentage of Total Peasion Linbility $4.09% 89.99% 19.91% 78.55%

Covered Fmployee Payroll LO4R, 140 1861482 |.370,649 1,786,809

Net Pension Liability s a Perventage
of Covered Employee Payrol 43.817% 28.19% 54.47% 53.63%

Notes to Schedule: N/A

GASH 68 requires ten years of date 10 be provided in this schedule howeveranly 3 years are available
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FEXAS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM - SCHEDULE OF CHANGES
IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

Total Pension Liability

Service vost

Interest (on the dofal pension Habiliy)

Changes ol benetit terms

IHterence between expected and actuad
experience

Change of assumptions

Benelit payrents, including refimds of
cmployee contributions

Net Change in Total Pension Liability

Total Penston Linbilify - Beginning

Total Pension Liability - Ending (a)

Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Contribitions - cmployer

Contributions - cmployee

Nel investment incore

DBenefit puyments, incliiding relunds of
eniployee contributions

Administrative expense

Other

Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning

Plan Fiduciary Net Position ~ Ending (b)

Net Pension Liability - Ending (a) - (b)

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a

Percentage of Total Pension Linbility

Covered Employee Payrofl

Net Pension Liability as n Percentage
of Covered Employee Payroll

Mates to Schedule: N/A

GASH 68 reguaires ten years of date 10 Be provided in this sehedule. however, only one year is currently nvailable

CITY OF ROCKDALE, TEXAS

Last Ten Years®

Exhibit B-3

4 2013 2012 2t 2010 2009
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A NIA
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
NIA NIA N/A N/A N/A N/A
NiA NIA N/A N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A IN/A N/A N/A
N/A NA NIA /A N/A NIA
N/A NIA N/A N/A N/A N/A
N/A NIA NIA NA INIA N/A
NIA N/A NIA N/A N/A N/A
N/A NIA NIA N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A NIA N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
NIA N/A NIA NiA N/A N/A
NIA N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A NIA N/A N/A
N/A N/A NIA IN/A N/A N/A
NAA NIA N/A NIA N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A NIA N/A N/A
NIA N/A IN/A NIA N/A N/A
NIA N/A NIA N/A N/A N/A
NIA N/A NIA N/A N/A NiA



CITY OF ROCKDALE, TEXAS
Exhibit B-4
TEXAS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM -~ SCHEDULE OF
EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
Last Ten Years

2018 2017 2016 2015

Actuarially Determined Contributions 5 194,619 $ 184,281 $ 180,429 $ 177,803
Contributions in Relation to the

Actuarially Determined Contributions 5 194,019 $ 184,281 180,429 177,803
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) - - - -
Covered Employee Payroll 1,948,140 1,861,482 1.870,649 1,786,009
Contributions as a Percentage of

Covered Gmployee Payroll 9.99% 9.90% 9.65% 9.93%

GASE 68 requires ten years of data to be provided in this schedule, however, only on year is currently available
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CITY OF ROCKDALE, TEXAS
Exhibit B-4
TEXAS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM - SCHEDULE OF
EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
Last Ten Years (Continued)

2014 2013 2012 2011 2016 2009
Actuarially Determined Contributions N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Contributions in Relation (o the
Actuarially Determined Contributions N/A NIA N/A N/A N/A N/A
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) N/A N/A N/A N/A NFA N/A
Covered Employee Payroll N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Contributions as o Percentage of
Covered Emplovee Payroll N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

GASH 68 requires len years of data to be provided in this schedule, however, only on year is currenily avaitable
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CITY OF ROCKDALE, TEXAS
Exhibit B-5
TEXAS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM — NOTES TO THE
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

Vatuation Date:
Noies Actuarially determined contribution rates are caleulated as of
December 31 and become effective in January, 13 months later,

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Ape Normal

Amortization Method Level Percentage of Payroll, Closed

Remaining Amortization Period 2% Years

Asset Valuation Method 10 Year smoothed market; 15% soll corridor

Inflation 2.5%

Salary Increases 3.50% 10 10.50% including inflation

Investment Rate of Return 6.75%

Reélirement Age Experienced-based table of rates that are specific to the City’s plan

of benefits. Last updated Tor the 2015 valuation pursuant to an
experience study of the period 2010-2014

Mortality RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar Adjustiment
with male rates multiplied by 109% and female rates niultiplied by
103% and projected on a fully generational basis with scale B3,

Other Information:

Notes There were no benelit changes during the year,
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CITY OF ROCKDALE, TEXAS
Exhibit C-1
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Special Revenne Famds
Totals
Ly Nownajor
Hilt Palice Polive Police Bpevial
Memorial  Depatment Officerof  FEMA Thepartmesd Veterans Muigipal HutelMuoiel Reverue

Fund Spwecial The Year  Geml  Frammy Park Clourt Tax Asrpont Funds
Asnets
Cush gnd cash equivalons & 6086 8 5306 % 4040 % 43 0§ g0aw 8 3OS 8 BI®SE S 237300 0§ 2508w 8 AT4REY
Capital assets/AR 13,052 13,932
Prae from wther fimds - - - - - - 31,483 1,493 - 32978
Tofd Assels 2008 5,596 S04 43 B (s RAUTSS 115,334 239,004 25289 421,197

B ———

Linbilities & Fund Balances
Liubikitivs
Acgounts piiynile - - o7 . . . - - Ant 460
Preferred Revenue
Prae o other finds . . . . . . - . 46,472 46,472
Fotas Faabibities . . g7 - . . - . 16,932 46,932
Fumsl Halanees
Restrictad 20,18 5,396 4,552 43 & 06 3,095 11534 130,004 (2,643 374,865
Tatal Fund Hudances 0018 5,396 4,552 43 B 049 3,998 115334 23,064 (21,6437 FHLEOS
Todal Linbilities wid
Fund Baloces S 20018 0§ 5396 % 4649 S 43 0% K469 5 3995 08 115334 5 230004 08 25280 8 4097
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CITY OF ROCKDALL, TEXAS
I xhibit C-1
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAIOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (Continued)

Capltal
Debt Serviee Projects Totals
Fangl laned Nonmajor
Db 2000 Governmentad
Service  Tay Noes Funds
S 19701 % . $ 566,548
36,868
43,523 - 78,501
274,092 - . 643,089
- - 460
55,174 35174
15,537 . 62,000
70,711 - 117,643
203,381 - 527,446
203,381 - 527446
5274092 % - $ 645,089
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CITY OF ROCKDALE, TEXAS
Exhibit C-2

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOYERNMENTAL FUNDS

Specinl Revenue Frnds

Toaals
Ly Norinsjor
ilill Police Palice Police Speent
Memonal epattenent {Hiicer ol FEMA 1ep Velerpis  Muonigipai HotelMated Revenue
Fangd Spreadn! The Yo i I'insing Park Caburt Tax Adepore Fumbs
Revenues
Faxes
Propeny $ - 8 -8 - % <% - % cs - 8 -8 - 8 -
Burel/Atutid . . - . - - . 132079 . 152.057%
Charges Bor services . . . . - - 03549 - 3R 237,776
Fitwes amd fosfeatures - . . . - - - .
hiveshineis carmings 313 il P Gl it 03 1233 H 016 pihi] 28
Cantrilintions snd denatiens 11,841 1,304 5907 . . . i - 6,750 5,402
Orher . - - 14,5720 1,383 . . - . B350
Tat) Reveaues 12,214 1404 3,505 1503 1,645 163 205 B2 58, kI3 0,807 ERRRIZ I
Expenditnres
Curvent,;
Gienerat gosermmen) . - . - - - 210,48 126,980 28752 hRy Ay dl
Pulilic sulety - B 3,200 B 814 . . - - 4,076
Highnways wnd streers . . - MM - . . . 32458
Culiare wd recreation 8922 - - . - - . - 3922
Capind Chrllay . . .
Debi Service:
Principal puytuesits - . - . - . - -
Trrest aas fisend wharges . - . . . . .
Towl Expesilitures 8022 - A MME 8l - 210,489 120,980 21,782 MR
Esgess L Resciy § of Revenues
ver (Linder) Expenditures 329 A4 L2 (e €7 1Y} (4,007} IRILS 19.FEE 3,382
ey 1 p Sovrces
Fransfess infiChaty . v . . . . (212.870] - - (212,870}
"Tot) (Hher Fipanving Nowrges B - - - - - (X287 B . (228703
Net Clnnge in Ful Balanees ma 1 AGY IR {1 RIR 103 (2E7 47T} ILHA 19,815 IR 28
Fund Babmirees, Begin ol Yeur 726 KR XY 23 19,257 7491 3592 I A Y1780 {40,758) 535,745
Fuid Babnees, Ead ol YVeur LY AHE S Y39 % 4551 0% A3 % sH09 S 3B9% % 1AM & 13000 % (24641) & 387,457
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CITY OF ROCKDALFE, TEXAS
Exhibit -2
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOYERNMENTAL FUNDS (Confinued)

Capital
Debt Service  Projects l'otals
Fund Fund Nonmajor
Dbt 2000 Governnenta]
Service  Tax Noles Funds
$ 565,091 8 < 5 365,090
- - F52.079
- - 230,70
9381 - 18,620
- - 25,4412
“ - 16,350
574,472 - LAUI5.518
300 - 359.521
- 076
. . 34,245
- - 8922
192,002 - 192,002
373,594 - 373,594
565,890 - 972,360
4,576 - 43,158
- - {212,870
- - {169,712)
8,576 . (169.712)
194,803 - 730,350
$ 203381 % - % 560,838

70



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Mayor & City Council
City of Rockdale, Texas

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Audiling Standards issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate
discretely presented component unils, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of
Rockdale, Texas, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the City of Rockdale, Texas' basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
March 2, 2020,

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of Rockdale, Texas' internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City of Rockdale, Texas' internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of the City of Rockdale, Texas' internal control

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in
the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.
A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that' is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given
these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Rockdale, Texas' financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement
amounts., However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Audiling Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of

that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal
control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Donalg, L. Allman, CPA, PC
S "

Georgetown, TX
March 2, 2020
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